Board of Crawford County Commissioners

Commissioners” Journal

2025, EIGHTIETH MEETING

CRAWFORD COUNTY COURTHOUSE, COMMISSIONERS’ BOARD ROOM
Girard, KS. Friday, November 14, 2025 Immediately following the Board of County Canvassers

The Crawford County Board of Commissioners met pursuant to Kansas Statutes.
Annotated Chapter 19, Article 2, Section 18 in due and regular session with open doors.
Commissioner Tom Moody served as the presiding officer.

Commissioners Bruce Blair and Carl Wood were in attendance.

County Clerk Lisa Lusker and County Counselor Jim Emerson were seated with the
Board.

Chairman Moody led the Pledge of Allegiance.

UNDER THE HEADING BUSINESS FROM A PREVIOUS MEETING
CONSENT AGENDA
On motion (25-466) of Commissioner Wood and the second of Commissioner Blair that
the consent agenda be approved including:
1. Approval of the November 04, 2025 minutes of the Board of County
Commissioners, and
2. Authorizing the Chairman to sign the previous week’s vouchers.
Yeas: Commissioners Wood, Blair, and Moody
Nays:
Present but not voting:
Absent or not voting:
The motion prevailed and the consent agenda was approved.

SIGNING OF MOTIONS
The County Clerk presented the following motions for Commissioners’ signatures:
Motion 25 454 That the consent agenda be approved including: Approval of the
October 31, 2025 minutes
Motion 25 455 | To approve the October 2025 Clerk’s Report as presented
Motion 25 456 To recess this open meeting and go into a closed executive session for

20 minutes to discuss EMS pursuant to the non-elected personnel
exception, K.S.A. 75-4319(b)(1), to protect the privacy of the
individual employees. The County Commissioners, County Counselor
Jim Emerson, EMS Director Randy Sandberg, and EMS Billing
Supervisor Jill Warford attended the executive session. The open
meeting will resume at 10:31 AM. The Motion passed 3-0

Page 1 of 11




Board of Crawford County Commissioners

Motion 25 457 To recess this open meeting and go into a closed executive session for
15 minutes to discuss individual employees job performance pursuant
to the non-elected personnel exception, K.S.A. 75-4319(b)(1), to
protect the privacy of the individual employees. The County
Commissioners, County Counselor Jim Emerson, County Clerk Lisa
Lusker, and Courthouse Maintenance Aaron Crozier attended the
executive session. The open meeting will resume at 10:47 AM. The
Motion passed 3-0

Motion 25 458 To approve the publication of the Notice of Intent to Vacate a portion
of county road located between Sections 14 and 23, Township 28
South, Range 25 East, Crawford County, Kansas with a public hearing
scheduled for Tuesday, December 2, 2025 at 10:00 AM

Motion 25 459 To recess this open meeting and to go into a closed executive session
for 15 minutes to discuss legal advice regarding an easement which
would be deemed privileged in the attorney-client relationship
pursuant to the consultation with attorney exception, K.S.A. 75-
4319(b)(2), with the County Commissioners and County Counselor
Jim Emerson present. The open meeting will resume at 11:04 A.M.
The motion passed 3-0

Motion 25 460 | To recess this open meeting and go into a closed executive session for
10 minutes to discuss Road and Bridge pursuant to the non-elected
personnel exception, K.S.A. 75-4319(b)(1), to protect the privacy of
the individual employees. The County Commissioners and County
Counselor Jim Emerson attended the executive session. The open
meeting will resume at 11:13 AM. The Motion passed 3-0

UNDER THE HEADING NEW BUSINESS
PROCLAMATION AND ORDERS OF THE BOARD
PUBLIC HEARINGS AND OPENING OF ANNOUNCED BIDS
MESSAGES FROM CRAWFORD CO LOCAL BOARD OF HEALTH
MESSAGES FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES
MESSAGES FROM ELECTED OFFICIALS
MESSAGES FROM APPOINTED OFFICIALS

Item One: Sheriff’s Department Human Resources/Finance Officer Adam Harrison
addressed the Commissioners. He discussed the hourly rate for corrections being $16.00
an hour and that they have a low retention rate. Mr. Harrison stated these individuals
work 12 hour shifts potentially with violent offenders and discussed the process these
individuals go through just to be hired. He mentioned they are proposing raising the entry
pay to $18.00 an hour. Mr. Harrison explained the handouts he provided to the
Commissioners regarding corrections pay rate and how it fits into the budget. He stated
he believes this will give them the ability to retain some staff. Commissioner Wood asked
if the generator for the jail has been ordered yet and Mr. Harrison confirmed it has been
ordered but that it is a 12 to 16 week wait time, and that until they receive the generator
and an invoice they cannot finalize the paperwork for it. Mr. Emerson discussed the loan
paperwork. Sheriff Billy Tomasi addressed the Commissioners and explained if they do
not increase the payrate they are going to lose staff and not have enough employees to
run the jail. Mr. Harrison stated they are looking to cut costs in other places as well to

Page 2 of 11




Board of Crawford County Commissioners

help the budget. Commissioner Moody stated they appreciate the Sheriff coming in to
make them away of the pay rate change since he is an elected official and is not required
to discuss it with the Commissioners. Commissioner Moody asked Mr. Emerson if they
included 3% in the budget for pay increase and Mr. Emerson confirmed they did but that
the pay increases have not yet been improved. Mr. Harrison stated he would like to
implement this payrate change January 1st, 2026.

MESSAGES FROM THE PUBLIC

Item One: Ms. Jasmine Kyle and Ms. Sabina Brackett from SEK Humane Society
addressed the Commissioners. Ms. Kyle thanked the Commissioners for being willing to
explore ways the SEK Humane Society can serve the community. Ms. Kyle stated they
first wanted to address the potential sales tax legislation to include the SEK Humane
Society as a supported beneficiary. She discussed the process for this. She mentioned
today they are hoping to clarify the next steps and timelines for this process. Mr.
Emerson stated he knows the sales tax was discussed last time Ms. Kyle and Ms. Brackett
attended a meeting but that he is not sure there was ever a vote for Commissioners to
support a sales tax question. Mr. Emerson discussed the sales tax process and that the
county has other needs he would advise the Commissioners look at a sales tax on. He
stated this is something that would need to be studied before making a final decision on.
Mr. Emerson discussed more of the process and that it is up to the Commissioners to
decide what they will support. Ms. Kyle asked what they can do for the time being to
help out with the process and Commissioner Wood discussed the Commissioner’s need to
give relief to taxpayers. Ms. Kyle stated they must have misunderstood and that they
went through the recording of the previous meeting they attended and that several of
them stated they were in support of this in 2026 with them coming back in March. Ms.
Kyle asked if they are no longer looking at this for 2026 and Commissioner Wood stated
he does not have an answer right now because property tax is so high. Ms. Brackett stated
they are trying to get a time frame and see if there is any assistance that they can move
forward on, and Ms. Kyle stated they reached out to United States Humane Society’s
lobbyist and have already had people working on this so they need direct clarification on
what to do and Commissioner Moody stated they need to discuss amongst themselves
and Mr. Emerson mentioned getting their lobbyist involved for some advice for the
Commission. Ms. Kyle asked the Commissioners when they would like them to reach
back out on this topic and Commissioner Wood explained right now the county is
strapped and stated he has heard as well that the SEK Humane Society will be good
through March 2026 and Ms. Kyle stated they should be good through May 2026 as they
had a good match fundraiser. Ms. Kyle mentioned they have not closed down and that
they are open Friday, Saturday, and Sundays to the public and the other days are by
private adoption appointment. Ms. Brackett stated they have had to stop intakes. Ms.
Brackett discussed the stray dogs. Ms. Kyle stated she would like an opinion from the
Commissioners regarding where the county stands in supporting the organization and
determining their long term operational direction. She discussed that the SEK Humane
Society has previously operated on sanctuary style methods and staying a no kill shelter,
but that they will have to take a look on if they can continue to operate like this but if
they ran as a true intake model euthanasia rates will increase. Ms. Kyle asked if the
county would more likely support maybe financially the sanctuary style approach or a
high intake open admission approach even though it would have higher euthanasia rates.

Page 3 of 11



Board of Crawford County Commissioners

Commissioner Moody asked if the SEK Humane Society has a board and Ms. Kyle stated
they do and that Ms. Brackett is on the board. Commissioner Moody asked how many
individuals are on this board and Ms. Brackett answered seven individuals.
Commissioner Moody asked what their board recommends and Ms. Kyle stated they
have a meeting coming up soon. She mentioned they have been asked why they are not
doing more intake and explained it is because they have been receiving more injured and
stray animals so length of stay is higher than most areas. Ms. Kyle mentioned they did a
survey with the public and 80% are wanting the SEK Humane Society to remain a no kill
sanctuary style shelter but that at the same time they are getting a high request for
intakes. Ms. Brackett stated the board is in agreement with how the organization is
currently running. Commissioner Moody explained they have caught the Commission off
guard with this. Commissioner Blair explained that since the SEK Humane Society last
attended a meeting the county has had several financial surprises arise and that they have
realized that without some of the funds and grants that come from the government the
county employees and programs are at risk. He explained he is talking about operations
like EMS and the Health Department and to be honest they are looking at what type of
funding the county will be losing when it comes to these operations. Ms. Brackett stated
this is the type of transparency they need. Ms. Kyle stated they just wanted to bring this
to their attention and knows other things take priority right now so if the Commissioners
will think this over they will touch base again in a month or two with hopes of something
changing on their side as well.

MESSAGES FROM APPOINTED OFFICIALS CONTINUTED

Item One: Zoning Administrator May Smith addressed the Commissioners. She stated
they currently have a problem that everyone is aware of on Highway 160. Ms. Smith
presented the Commissioners with information regarding a program with KDHE that will
help with the problem on Highway 160 with a 75/25 split and they will pay up to
$10,000.00. Ms. Smith mentioned KDHE handles the paperwork, contacts the
homeowner, gets back with the county regarding this information and she stated they
prefer the county’s 25% contribution to be the workers, equipment, landfill, etc.
Commissioner Moody asked how soon she can get the workers on this problem and Ms.
Smith stated if they approve this today she can get it sent in and get the county on the list.
She mentioned it is one man who covers 105 counties. Commissioner Moody asked Mr.
Emerson if he has seen this information and Mr. Emerson confirmed he has and thinks
this is appropriate for this problem.

On motion (25-467) of Commissioner Moody and the second of Commissioner Wood to
approve the local government statement of intent to use the KDHE Illegal Dumping
Program and authorizing the Chairman to sign.

Yeas: Commissioners Moody, Wood, and Blair

Nays:

Present but not voting:

Absent or not voting:

The motion prevailed.

Commissioner Wood asked how soon the KDHE worker will be present for this problem
and Ms. Smith explained the process. Commissioner Moody asked Ms. Smith to come

Page 4 of 11



Board of Crawford County Commissioners

back to the Commission meeting on Tuesday to give an update with this process. Ms.
Lusker asked if this is a property that has already been cleaned by the county and Mr.
Emerson confirmed partially.

MESSAGES FROM THE PUBLIC CONTINUED

Item Two: Mr. Rick Elnicki addressed the Commissioners. He stated he would like to
clarify something that he discussed at last night’s public hearing. Mr. Elnicki mentioned
he spoke about problems he has previously had attempting to develop land adjacent to
City of Frontenac therefore concerning his land included in the potential Mulberry
annexation he would like to make it clear he would not agree to be annexed by City of
Frontenac. He stated this would eliminate reason number four in the resolution City of
Frontenac presented to the Commissioners. Mr. Elnicki stated he went to the council
meeting for the City of Frontenac and told them he would not agree to be annexed by
Frontenac so he is unsure why they included this in their resolution as they would not be
able to expand to that area anyways. Mr. Elnicki stated he talked to Mr. Steve Kuplen this
morning and he stated Mr. Kuplen told him to inform the Commission he also would not
agree to be annexed by Frontenac because of the tax increase. Commissioner Moody
stated they would like to provide information to the county’s attorney to look at.

Item Three: Mr. Pat Walden addressed the Commissioners. He stated he is here to
clarify the Highway 160 property. He asked if they are going to get help some way and
Mr. Emerson explained the program with KDHE. Mr. Emerson explained the county has
attempted to clean it several times. Mr. Walden discussed cleaning up Mulberry and that
they are looking for help with this. Commissioner Moody directed him to discuss with
Zoning Administrator May Smith. Mr. Walden stated he is concerned the county is
running these individuals over to Mulberry by cleaning the property and that Mulberry
does not have the money to clean up properties.

Item Four: Mr. John Copyak with Shasta Power addressed the Commissioners. He
thanked the Commissioners for considering the Mulberry annexation and that today is a
good time to discuss while budget is on everyone’s mind. He wanted to reassure that their
estimates of tax payments to the city and county are clear. Mr. Copyak provided the
Commissioners with Shasta Power’s tax estimates. He mentioned they are proposing to
be one of the largest tax payers in the county and that annexing in to Mulberry would not
take away money from the county as they would be paying taxes to the county and the
city both. Mr. Copyak stated the possible year of completion would be in 2029 and that it
would be a $200,000,000 investment with battery storage and other equipment. He stated
taxes on that portion would be about $4.6 million paid to the county and panel costs
being $300,000,000 and that although those are tax exempt under current State law
Shasta is offering to pay 10% of what would be paid if tax exemption did not exist which
is around $680,000. He explained the money for the first year to Crawford County would
be about $5.3 million dollars using the mill levy from 2024. Mr. Copyak stated he has
worked closely with the County Assessor to produce these numbers. He explained the
next page is strictly payments that would go to Mulberry and that he believes it would
save that city. Mr. Copyak mentioned the last page is the combined payments to the
county and Mulberry not including sales tax. Commissioner Wood asked what he is
talking about when it comes to sales tax and Mr. Copyak explained.

Page S of 11



Board of Crawford County Commissioners

Item Five: Ms. Melesia Rhodes addressed the Commissioners. She stated she is not
talking about solar or annexation but would like to discuss economic development. Ms.
Rhodes stated she did a google search this morning and went to the National Health
Institute to get information about counties in poverty and explained her findings. She
mentioned Crawford County was on the list but Bourbon County and Cherokee County
were not and asked what these counties have that Crawford does not and answered that is
an Economic Development Board. Ms. Rhodes stated City of Pittsburg is continuously
looking for development for their city. She stated she would ask that Crawford County
develops an economic development group that would help these smaller communities.
She discussed her personal business SEK Rural Development. Ms. Rhodes stated
Mulberry needs everything at once to be in compliance with KDHE. She stated Military
road in Mulberry is a great tourist attraction. She discussed 69 Highway and potential
decline in development. Commissioner Blair asked who has main street and Ms. Rhodes
answered. Ms. Rhodes discussed grant applications for main street areas. Commissioner
Blair stated he is trying to understand and asked for clarification that Girard is main street
but Pittsburg is not but that Pittsburg is more successful at getting money and asked if
this is because the other cities do not have funds to match. Ms. Rhodes stated she is just
explaining off of what Cherokee county did. She stated we as a county need to be more
assertive and aggressive at using these government programs. Commissioner Blair asked
who gets paid with these fees if there is a fee to be a main street community and Ms.
Rhodes answered. Commissioner Blair asked if she works for this company she is trying
to explain to the Commissioners and Ms. Rhodes stated she is just wanting to see
economic development. Commissioner Wood asked if the county needs to be the hub for
the cities to be in the Main Street Association what would the county owe and Ms.
Rhodes stated she would have to look in to this.

NEW BUSINESS

Item One: Mr. Emerson mentioned they received the news of the passing of Attorney
Jason Wiske. He mentioned he feels terrible for Mr. Wiske’s family. Mr. Emerson
explained Mr. Wiske handled traffic cases for Crawford County and that he took felony
cases as well. Mr. Emerson stated he was contacted by both the County Attorney’s office
and by the Chief Judge as well about a local attorney to be recommended to step in to the
traffic docket. He explained the monthly cost is a little over $1,300 which is not a
significant amount. Commissioner Moody asked if this is who Mr. Emerson recommends
and Mr. Emerson confirmed.

On motion (25-468) of Commissioner Moody and the second of Commissioner Wood to
approve the appointment of Clifford W. Lee to the Crawford County Traffic Docket.
Yeas: Commissioners Moody, Wood, Blair

Nays:

Present but not voting:

Absent or not voting:

The motion prevailed.

Item Two: Mr. Emerson stated he had a meeting yesterday with Noxious Weed Director
Tommy Scales, Dennis Meier with Triad, as well as KDHE as they are working towards

Page 6 of 11



Board of Crawford County Commissioners

final closure of the old landfill. He explained this contract was signed in late 1997. Mr.
Emerson stated a lot of the discussion was centered around the monitoring wells and
explained.

Item Three: Mr. Emerson provided the Commissioners with information regarding
insurance. He explained the benefits fair is next week and Director of Fiscal Services
Randi Ryan is trying to get paperwork finalized so they need a couple of things approved.
Mr. Emerson started with dental and vision insurance and explained vision insurance will
not be changing. He stated on page two there is a decision to be made regarding dental
and explained they would be up $10,000 and that their recommendation is to go with the
$4,000 annual maximum with the kids up to age 18. Commissioner Wood asked how
much more would it be and Mr. Emerson explained base renewal was up about 5% but
that it would be less than 10%. Commissioner Wood asked how much is increasing in
what the county pays in comparison to how much more the employees would pay and
Mr. Emerson stated he would have to look into this and explained the increase in cost
listed on the paper provided. Commissioner Moody asked what the increase was to go
from 3 to 4 and Mr. Emerson answered it was $10,000. Commissioner Wood asked if the
employees will pay for part of the 5% and Mr. Emerson confirmed and stated it is not all
coming from the county. Commissioner Moody stated he believes this is good for the
employees.

On motion (25-469) of Commissioner Moody and the second of Commissioner Wood to
approve the change to the dental insurance plan.

Yeas: Commissioners Moody, Wood, and Blair

Nays:

Present but not voting:

Absent or not voting:

The motion prevailed.

Item Four: Mr. Emerson stated the health insurance has already been approved to stay
with Blue Cross and the stop loss. He stated he has provided the design checklist changes
to the Commissioners and that the only differences are switching to Yes on coverage for
diabetes reversal program. Commissioner Wood asked about the chemotherapy drugs and
Mr. Emerson confirmed that is the same as last year. Commissioner Wood asked what is
different than last year and Mr. Emerson explained the coverage for diabetes reversal
program has been changed to yes. Commissioner Wood asked about the insurance going
up by 8% and Mr. Emerson confirmed. Commissioner Wood asked if they changed the
stop loss from $125,000 to $150,000 and Mr. Emerson stated he thought it was left the
same. Mr. Emerson asked Ms. Lusker to see if Ms. Randi Ryan would come to the
meeting. Ms. Ryan stated the stop loss was increased to $150,000. Commissioner Wood
asked if this is what Blue Cross changed in their policy and Ms. Ryan stated nothing
should have changed on Blue Cross’s part. Ms. Ryan explained the diabetic reversal
program. Commissioner Wood asked if anything else has changed on these papers and
Ms. Ryan answered it has not. Ms. Ryan discussed telemedicine. Commissioner Wood
asked if someone is in the higher plan they do not get these changes and Ms. Ryan
explained. Commissioner Wood asked about the express scripts and Ms. Ryan answered.

Page 7 of 11



Board of Crawford County Commissioners

On motion (25-470) of Commissioner Blair and the second of Commissioner Wood to
approve the health insurance as presented authorizing the Chairman to sign.

Yeas: Commissioners Blair, Wood, and Moody

Nays:

Present but not voting:

Absent or not voting:

The motion prevailed.

Item Five: Mr. Emerson informed the Commissioners when Mr. Dennis Meier was
present to discuss the landfill he had discussed with him getting with the foreman to look
at the roads along the transmission line. Mr. Emerson stated each of the foremen as well
as Triad went out and looked at the roads and he would like the Commissioners to
provide the information provided to their foreman. Commissioner Moody stated he
recommends providing the information to their foreman to get their recommendations.
Commissioner Blair asked if there is a larger map that shows all the roads used and Mr.
Emerson stated he will see if he can find one. Commissioner Wood asked who has the
video that Triad did at the beginning and Mr. Emerson stated Triad has that video.

Item Six: Mr. Emerson discussed boilers at the courthouse. He stated both of the boilers
are the courthouse has issues and maintenance asked Design Mechanical to come take a
look. Mr. Emerson stated one boiler is at most 2 years old and he reviewed the warranty
documentation for it and that Design Mechanical is recommending to change both heat
exchangers in the boilers and then send it to Design Mechanical to send to the company
for warranty review. Mr. Emerson stated this is kind of an emergency situation and that
something needs to be done as soon as possible. Mr. Emerson explained the heat
exchanger route in both boilers is what is recommended financially. Mr. Emerson stated
the frustrating part is that after having some issues in the past they changed the water,
changed the water company, and they are still having issues. Mr. Emerson explained
some future recommendations.

On motion (25-471) of Commissioner Wood and the second of Commissioner Moody to
approve the recommendation of replacing both heat exchangers by Design Mechanical in
the amount of $53,128.00 and authorizing the Chairman to sign.

Yeas: Commissioners Wood, Moody, and Blair

Nays:

Present but not voting:

Absent or not voting:

The motion prevailed.

MESSAGES FROM APPOINTED OFFICIALS CONTINUED

Item One: Sanitarian Bill Towery addressed the Commissioners. He asked if the
Commissioners were aware of the problem at the Historic Museum and asked if the
county is going to fix it. Commissioner Wood stated he received a call about this last
week and he contacted Mr. Robert Gorentz about this. Commissioner Wood stated
someone at the museum got into contact with Roto Rooter and they stated they had a
collapsed line but he received a call about it stating the tank was collapsed.
Commissioner Wood stated he believed Mr. Gorentz was going to contact Mr. Towery

Page 8 of 11



Board of Crawford County Commissioners

regarding this issue. Mr. Emerson stated they will discuss this in executive session first
because there is some legal aspects that need to be worked out first. Commissioner Wood
asked if it was a tile tank that collapsed and Mr. Towery answered. Commissioner Wood
asked if it is operational for right now and Mr. Towery answered.

OLD BUSINESS

Item One: Ms. Lusker stated she has a statement she would like to read in advance to tax
statements being issued. Ms. Lusker stated each Ad Valorem taxing units develop and
approve budgets for the upcoming year. She explained how mill levy is determined. She
mentioned in June she provides each taxing unit with its total assessed valuation to
estimate preliminary mill levy when budgets are prepared. Ms. Lusker stated by October
Ist all budgets are turned in to her office and she finalizes the total tax abstract using the
most up to date values. Ms. Lusker stated in the 2025 tax year due to pending exemptions
the City of Pittsburg had around $15 million dollars in assessed valuation that changed
from taxable to exempt status following several BOTA rulings the largest being the
hospital. She stated because these properties were removed from the taxable rolls the total
value available for taxation decreased. She stated she would like to be clear the county,
City of Pittsburg, and USD 250 are not collecting anymore tax revenue than what was
budgeted. She stated the City of Pittsburg was aware of the exemptions and had the
correct valuation before preparing their budget therefore this change in valuation had no
effect on the City of Pittsburg.

EXECUTIVE SESSION

Item One: County Counselor Jim Emerson requested an executive session for 15 minutes
to discuss items that would be deemed privileged in the Attorney-Client Relationship.

On motion (25-472) of Commissioner Moody and second of Commissioner Blair to
recess this open meeting and to go into a closed executive session for 15 minutes to
discuss legal advice regarding insurance which would be deemed privileged in the
attorney-client relationship pursuant to the consultation with attorney exception, K.S.A.
75-4319(b)(2), with the County Commissioners and County Counselor Jim Emerson
present. The open meeting will resume at 11:42 A.M. The motion passed 3-0.

Yeas: Commissioners Wood, Blair, and Moody

Nays:

Present but not voting:

Absent or not voting:

The motion prevailed.

The Commissioners went into Executive Session at 11:27 AM and reconvened the
Open Session at 11:42 AM with no action taken except to go back into open session.

Item Two: Commissioner Wood requested an executive session for 15 minutes to discuss
Non-Elected Personnel.

On motion (25-473) of Commissioner Moody and the second of Commissioner Blair to
recess this open meeting and go into a closed executive session for 15 minutes to discuss

Page 9 of 11



Board of Crawford County Commissioners

exit interview process pursuant to the non-elected personnel exception, K.S.A. 75-
4319(b)(1), to protect the privacy of the individual employees. The County
Commissioners and County Counselor Jim Emerson attended the executive session. The
open meeting will resume at 11:59 AM. The Motion passed 3-0.

Yeas: Commissioners Moody, Wood, and Blair

Nays:

Present but not voting:

Absent or not voting:

The motion prevailed.

The Commissioners went into Executive Session at 11:44 AM and reconvened the
Open Session at 11:50 AM with no action taken except to go back into open session.

Item Three: County Counselor Jim Emerson requested an executive session for 15
minutes to discuss items that would be deemed privileged in the Attorney-Client
Relationship.

On motion (25-474) of Commissioner Moody and second of Commissioner Blair to
recess this open meeting and to go into a closed executive session for 15 minutes to
discuss legal advice regarding annexation which would be deemed privileged in the
attorney-client relationship pursuant to the consultation with attorney exception, K.S.A.
75-4319(b)(2), with the County Commissioners, County Counselor Jim Emerson, and
Mr. Joshua Albin present. The open meeting will resume at 12:10 P.M. The motion
passed 3-0.

Yeas: Commissioners Wood, Blair, and Moody

Nays:

Present but not voting:

Absent or not voting:

The motion prevailed.

The Commissioners went into Executive Session at 11:50 AM and reconvened the
Open Session at 12:10 PM with no action taken except to go back into open session.

Item Four: Commissioner Wood requested an executive session for 10 minutes to
discuss items that would be deemed privileged in the Attorney-Client Relationship.

On motion (25-475) of Commissioner Moody and second of Commissioner Blair to
recess this open meeting and to go into a closed executive session for 10 minutes to
discuss legal advice regarding lease agreements which would be deemed privileged in the
attorney-client relationship pursuant to the consultation with attorney exception, K.S.A.
75-4319(b)(2), with the County Commissioners and County Counselor Jim Emerson
present. The open meeting will resume at 12:21 P.M. The motion passed 3-0.

Yeas: Commissioners Wood, Blair, and Moody

Nays:

Present but not voting:

Absent or not voting:

The motion prevailed.

Page 10 of 11



Board of Crawford County Commissioners

The Commissioners went into Executive Session at 12:11 PM and reconvened the
Open Session at 12:19 PM with no action taken except to go back into open session.

UNDER THE HEADING FUTURE BUSINESS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS
FUTURE BUSINESS:

Item One: November 21, 2025- Ms. Leslie Lackamp with Mosaic and Mr. Bob Davis
with Class LTD giving a county mill presentation.

ANNOUNCEMENTS:

UNDER THE HEADING MOTION TO ADJOURN

MOTION TO ADJOURN

Item One: Adjournment

On the motion of Commissioner Moody and the second of Commissioner Wood to
adjourn the November 14, 2025 meeting of the Board of Crawford County
Commissioners at 12:20 PM and to reconvene at the next regularly scheduled time with
open doors.

Yeas: Commissioners Wood, Blair, and Moody

Nays:

Present but not voting:

Absent or not voting:

The motion prevailed.

In Testimony whereof, I have hereunto set my hand and caused to be affixed my
official seal and submitted these minutes for the approval of the Board of Crawford
County Commissioners.

Lisa Lusker
County Clerk

<>

This submission completed at the Crawford County Courthouse in Girard.
Taken RJA 11/17/25 4:56 PM

Page 11 of 11



